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RE: Geysers Calistoga petition to amend; request for additional information, Public
Health

Barbara McBride <Barbara.McBride@calpine.com>
Mon 7/13/2020 12:26 PM
To:  Veerkamp, Eric@Energy <Eric.Veerkamp@energy.ca.gov>
Cc:  Dave (William) Jackson <Dave.Jackson@calpine.com>

1 attachments (5 MB)
GPC20-020.pdf;

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Here is the same informa�on for the Calistoga pe��on.  It appears that LCAQMD may have made a typo when
transferring the data.  Please let me know if you need more informa�on. 
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Barbara McBride

Director, Strategic Origination

 

Calpine Corporation

3003 Oak Road

Walnut Creek, CA  94597

P: 925-570-0849
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From: Veerkamp, Eric@Energy <Eric.Veerkamp@energy.ca.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 2, 2020 4:34 PM
To: Dave (William) Jackson <Dave.Jackson@calpine.com>; Barbara McBride <Barbara.McBride@calpine.com>
Cc: Davis, Chris@Energy <Chris.Davis@energy.ca.gov>; Deric J. Wi�enborn <djw@eslawfirm.com>
Subject: Geysers Calistoga pe��on to amend; request for addi�onal informa�on, Public Health
 
External Sender: Use caution with links/attachments.

Hi Dave and Barbara,
Please see the a�ached email inquiry from Ann Chu regarding Public Health.  Thanks!
 
Eric W. Veerkamp
Compliance Project Manager
California Energy Commission
916-661-8458
www.energy.ca.gov

 

From: Chu, Ann@Energy <Ann.Chu@energy.ca.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 2, 2020 12:15 PM
To: Veerkamp, Eric@Energy <Eric.Veerkamp@energy.ca.gov>
Cc: Hughes, Joseph@Energy <Joseph.Hughes@energy.ca.gov>; Fletcher, Nancy@Energy
<Nancy.Fletcher@energy.ca.gov>; Bemis, Gerry@Energy <Gerry.Bemis@energy.ca.gov>
Subject: Geysers Calistoga pe��on to amend
 
HI, Eric,
 
I am doing PH of Calistoga Amendment. I am wondering if you could pass my request to the applicant?
 
I tried to replicate the Carcinogen Score but couldn’t. The normaliza�on factor on Table 4 (1700) does not match
the one in the Guideline (7700, formula 1, page 8). Can you explain why? Or is there any mistake?
Also, the score I calculate is 0.0050898, but the report is 0.01. Is it due to rounding?  Thanks.
 
Ann
COMPANY CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information in this e-mail may be confidential and/or
privileged and protected by work product immunity or other legal rules. No confidentiality or privilege
is waived or lost by mis-transmission. If you are not the intended recipient or an authorized
representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, or
copying of this e-mail and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If
you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by return e-mail and
delete this e-mail from your computer system.
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Project Description  
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BACKGROUND: 
Cooling tower wet down systems are common on wood cooling towers and are used to keep 

the normally wetted surfaces of the cooling tower structure wet when the cooling tower is not in 

operation to preserve the wood.  Typically when a plant shuts down for an overhaul and the 

cooling tower is not circulating water, auxiliary or fire pumps are turned on to sprinkle areas of 

the cooling tower that can dry out, become damaged and more vulnerable to fire.  These 

systems are not subject to NFPA or other codes.  Impact spray nozzles (Rainbird™-style) are 

often used because they provide large coverage areas.  

 

The desire for wetting is particularly true of cooling towers that use geothermal steam 

condensate for cooling.  This is because, as hydrogen sulfide contained in the geothermal 

steam condensate is oxidized to soluble sulfur compounds, it becomes elemental sulfur for a 

period of time and can coat the wetted surfaces of the tower.  Sulfur is a flammable solid that 

has a relatively low ignition temperature. Utilizing a wet down system has been very 

successful in preventing the ignition of cooling towers in the geothermal industry during 

outages. 

 

Wet down systems are not to be confused with fire suppression systems.  A wet down system 

prevents the ignition of vulnerable surfaces while fire suppression systems are designed to 

douse fires after ignition occurs. Typically, the water pumping capacity of a fire suppression 

system is very large and the coverage area is very small and focused (able to cover a couple 

of cells).  Deluge systems that typically do not cover the fan or hot water decks and have 

limited coverage are judged not a good defense against wild land fires. 

 

During the 2015 Valley Fire, four completely and one partially cooling towers were fire 

damaged at several Geysers power plants.  Some of these cooling towers ignited while there 

was full cooling circulation water flow.  Analysis of the burned cooling towers indicates that the 

center of the cooling towers burned in the non-wetted areas such as the fan deck and the area 

below the fans (plenum area).  Field observations on cooling towers that did not burn showed 

indications that burning embers were deposited on the fan deck by the wild land fire as it 

passed the power plant. 

 

Thus, there is a need to spray water to any areas where sulfur residue may be found, including 

increasing the spray coverage in the normally non-wetted areas such as the fan deck, hot 

water basin, and plenum areas for increased protection from wild land fire embers. Figure 1 

shows a Google Earth view of the location of the power plant. 

 



 

 

GPC20-020.docx 

Figure 1. Google Earth View Showing Location of the Calistoga Power Plant 
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PROPOSED PROJECT 
An emergency wet down pump engine along with a separate water spray system is proposed 

to be added for use in the event of a plant evacuation due to the threat of an approaching wild 

land fire. Figure 2 illustrates the proposed flow diagram. The location of the emergency wet-

down pump engine is shown adjacent to the cooling tower circulating water pit on the Unit 19 

Power Plant Plot Plan (Figure 3). 

 

The emergency wet down pump engine will be manually started prior to evacuation of the 

power plant due to an approaching wild land fire to provide continued wet down of the cooling 

tower for approximately 24 hours or longer depending on fuel consumed.  Particulate and 

other exhaust emissions resulting from the operation of the diesel engine would be consistent 

with manufacturer’s specifications for this Tier 3 engine.  The exhaust emissions from the 

engine during emergency use would be virtually undetectable amidst the emissions resulting 

from an uncontrolled wild land fire. 

 

TESTING AND MAINTENANCE: 

Annual testing and maintenance operation hours are limited to no more than 50 hours.  Test 

operation routines will vary through the year with more frequent test operations occurring 

during the dry season and less frequent test operation occurring during wet seasons.  The 

hour meter indications will be logged as a result of routine inspections and at the start and 

completion of test and maintenance operations to ensure that annual hours of emergency 

use, and annual hours of test and maintenance operation are recorded. 
 

APPLICABLE REGULATIONS  

Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 93115 Airborne Toxic Control Measure for 
Stationary Compression Ignition (CI) Engines. 
 
The Emergency Standby Wet-Down Pump Diesel Drive Engine meets the required criteria of 
§ 93115.4 (29) for definition as an “Emergency Standby Engine” pursuant to (29) (A), (B), (C), 
(D), and (E). 

 

Operation of the Emergency Standby Wet-Down Pump Diesel Drive Engine meets multiple 
criteria of § 93115.4 (30) for definition as “Emergency Use” pursuant to (30) (A), (B), and (D), 
and (F).   
 
The Emergency Standby Wet Down Diesel Drive Engine meets the requirement of 
§93115.6(a)(3)(A)(1) Table 1: Emission Standards for New Stationary Emergency Standby 
Diesel-Fueled CI Engines. 
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Figure 2 
Flow Diagram Showing Emergency Wet Down Pump Engine 
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Figure 3  
Calistoga Power Plant: Plot Plan Showing the Emergency Wet Down Pump Engine Location 

 
 
 

 



 Exhaust Stack and Building Dimensions Information 
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DATA SUMMARY FOR EMERGENCY WET‐DOWN PUMP ENGINE  

Business Name  Geysers Power Company LLC,  Calistoga Power Plant   

Engine Manufacturer    Cummins   

Engine Family+      LCEXL0409AAB           Model     CFP7E‐F40    

Serial Number     Available Upon Delivery   Year of Manufacture   2020     

Rated Brake Horsepower Rating   204    

Engine Emission Factors (g/bhp‐hr)++ 

NOx      2.475       PM       0.111        NMHC   0.062        NMHC + NOx    2.537       CO    1.193   .  

Control Equipment: [] Turbocharger [] Aftercooler [] Injection Timing Retard [] Catalyst  []  

Diesel Particulate Filter [X] Tier 3 Emission Compliance 

Fuel Used: [X] CARB Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel [ ] Diesel [] Other       

Operation Information: 

Engine Operating Time for Testing and Maintenance:      50       hrs/yr 

Typical load        100         % of maximum bhp rating 

Total annual hours of operation  50 hours /yr (Testing  and maintenance)  

Fuel usage rate        10.6        gallons/hr  

+  Manufacturers Specification Sheet for the diesel engine provided (Attachment 1). 

++  U.S. EPA Certificate of Conformity with the Clean Air Act provided (Attachment 2). 

 

EXHAUST STACK AND BUILDING DIMENSION DATA 

Exhaust Stack Height Above Ground   11   ft* 

Exhaust Stack Height Above Top of Building   ‐37   ft  ,  Exhaust  stack will be below  the  top of  the 
adjacent building (cooling tower.) 

Exhaust Stack Diameter   0.333 ft 

Exhaust Stack Flowrate   1,218   CFM 

Exhaust Stack Direction [X] Up [ ] Down [ ] Side    Raincap [X] Yes [ ] No 

Exhaust Stack Gas Temperature    986.7   oF   

Nearest Building Dimensions   L:   385’      W:   52’       H:  48’   

Distance from stack to nearest residence     8,800   ft** 

Distance to nearest school grounds      2.97         mi***   

*  Exhaust Height may vary by +‐ 3 ft depending on final enclosure design. 

**  Distance given is from the engine stack to the nearest residence.  

*** Distance given is from the engine stack to the Cobb Mountain Elementary School (15,700 ft). 
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Attachment 1  
Manufacturer’s Specification Sheets for the Engine  
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Attachment 2 
 

U.S. EPA Certificate of Conformity with the Clean Air Act 
 
 
 



 

GPC20-020.docx 

Attachment 3  
 Air Emission Calculations and Health Risk Review 
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